ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 31, 2016

9:01 a. m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 144
"An Act relating to relocation assistance for federally assisted
projects and progranms; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 144 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 171

"An  Act relating to the duties of the Departnent of
Adm nistration; relating to paynent of judgnment against the
state; relating to pre-audit of clains; relating to travel costs
and travel outside the state; repealing authorization and
adm nistration of the Departnment of Admnistration to nmake
advances to the University of Alaska; and repealing the United
St ates savi ngs bond purchase plan.™

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BILL NO 194
"An Act relating to a veteran's designation on an identification
card or a driver's license for Lao and Hrong veterans."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 144
SHORT TI TLE: RELOCATI ON ASSI STANCE FOR FED. PRQJ/ PROG

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2016



SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 17/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 17/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 171

SHORT TI TLE: DOA PAYMENTS; REPEAL OTHER DOA DUTI ES
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 05/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 18/ 16 (S) STA AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 18/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 24/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 194

SHORT TI TLE: LAQ HMONG VETERAN DRI VER S LIC. & | D CARD
SPONSCR(s) : SENATOR(s) W ELECHOASKI BY REQUEST

02/ 22/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 16 (S) STA, FIN
03/ 31/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

HEATHER FAI R, State Ri ght-of-Way Chi ef

Al aska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regarding SB 144.

SHELDON FI SHER, Commi ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded a sectional analysis of SB 171

DANI EL GEORCE, Staff

Senator Bill Stoltze
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 31,

2016



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on SB 171 and the
commttee substitute for SB 194.

MYRON DOSCH, Controll er

University of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the managed travel program and
concerns regarding SB 171.

NANCY MEADE, General Counse

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed the Court System fiscal note and
concerns related to SB 171.

PASERT LEE, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

ARTHUR YANG, representative

Hrong- Al aska U.S. Special Guerrilla Unit Corporation
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

PAMELA BEALE, Chair

Al aska Vet erans Advi sory Counci

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

BOB DOEHL, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Al aska Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 194.

VERDI E BONEN, Director

Ofice of Veterans Affairs

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Addressed SB 194 and provided details
regarding the process for Hmng veteran honorable-service
desi gnati on

BROOKE | VY, Staff

Senator Bill W el echowski
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2016



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 194.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01:35 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze

SB 144- RELOCATI ON ASSI STANCE FOR FED. PRQJ/ PROG

9:02:13 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 144. He noted
that the bill was previously heard in commttee. He asked

Heat her Fair from the Al aska Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOT) if she recalled the questions posed to
her regarding issues from past DOT projects.

9:02: 30 AM

HEATHER FAIR, State Right-of-Wy Chief, Al aska Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT), Juneau, Al aska,
noted that DOl had subnmitted a response letter to the
commttee's questions that were posed on March 17. She noted
that the conmmttee asked nunmerous questions regarding historical
right-of-way acquisitions that my have inpacted Al askan
famlies and businesses. She detailed that sone of the
information was specific to relocations in the Eagle R ver area
[circa |ate 1980s]. She noted that SB 144 focuses on relocation
assi stance rather than acquisition. She summarized that sone of
the chal |l enges DOT faced were due to changing economc tines.

CHAI R STOLTZE said the question posed to DOT was an exanpl e that
occurred during the state's last nmmjor econonic downturn. He
said he was not trying to say that the state was going to have a
downturn, but admtted that a lot of the indicators signal the
possibility. He explained that there was a nmjor federally-
funded state-participatory project in Eagle River at a tinme when
there was an econom c downturn. The majority of property owners
had negative equity in their property and DOT was innovative in
trying to assist them Many of the property owners were
rel ocated to other economically distressed, but physically sound
homes. He specified that the ability to relocate to other hones
was a nmechani smthat hel ped. He opined that the exanple he posed

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2016



was a dynamic that could possibly occur again due to a right-of-
way acquisition through em nent domain. He asked Ms. Fair if he
had | eft anything out fromthe Eagle River situation.

9: 04: 45 AM
M5. FAIR answered no. She said she believed that Chair Stoltze
covered the situation well.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the comm ttee asked DOT about the Al ano
Club. He detailed that the Alano Cub was a civic organization
that was involuntarily noved and the club found thenselves in a
simlar situation regarding the cost of a new building. He noted
that the Alano Club had taken pride in eschewing all governnent
funding. He asked M. Fair if she could share additional
information on the Al ano d ub.

M5. FAIR expl ained that DOT did not have specific information on
the Alano Club due to the length of tinme that passed. She
concurred that the Alano Club was a comunity organization that
needed to be relocated due to a project. She pointed out that
the Alano Club was an exanple that dealt nostly wth an
acquisition at a price differential between what was paid for
their property and an acceptable substitute property that they
could acquire. She pointed out that SB 144 assists in price
differentials and the new federal rules provide for a |arger
differential between what was paid for the property that DOT
acquires and the new piece of property the owner acquires. She
reiterated that DOT was asking for the state to authorize DOT to
pay the higher maximums to Al askan famlies and busi nesses.

CHAIR STOLTZE explained that Alano Cub was ultimtely nade
whol e through assistance in the capital budget rather than from
DOT. He asked Ms. Fair to verify that SB 144 has the mechanics
to assist on a relocation.

9: 06: 46 AM

M5. FAIR answered correct. She detailed that DOl has new
maxi muns and nore available agreenments wth its funding
partners. She said DOT tries to find innovative ways to get
f eder al participation for higher unexpected anounts. She
sumari zed that DOT works on a case-by-case basis in addition to
working closely wth its funding partners to assist so that no
one is in a worse position due to involuntarily rel ocation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI noted that Section 6 in SB 144 makes the
act retroactive to October 1, 2014. He asked how much the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2016



retroactive act wuld cost the state and who would be the
reci pients of any retroactive paynents.

M5. FAIR concurred that SB 144 has a retroactivity provision.
She explained that only a handful of affected parties to date
would be eligible for potentially higher amunts based on the
new maxi muns. She detailed that the state's share for the
retroactive paynments were estinmated to be about $12,000. She
summari zed that very few folks have conme into retroactive
eligibility.

9:08:40 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked if the October 1, 2014 retroactive
date was tied to a federal statute.

M5. FAIR answered yes.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the federal governnent's fiscal year
starts on Cctober 1.

MS. FAIR answered correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked how nany individuals would receive
t he $12, 000.

M5. FAIR replied that the retroactive provision effects nore
t han one party, but she did not know the exact nunber.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that tying in real-life circunstances
makes a piece of legislation like SB 144 nore relevant. He
admtted that he hates to tal k about econom c depressions and
peopl e being "upside down." He thanked DOT for their indul gence
and patience with the commttee in fleshing out the |egislation.
He sunmarized that no changes were nade to the bill and the
commttee thoroughly discussed the fiscal note.

9:10: 16 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noved to report SB 144, [29-GS2709\A], from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
not e.

9:10: 25 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that w thout objection, SB 144 noves
fromcomm ttee.

9:10: 31 AM
At ease.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2016



SB 171- DOA PAYMENTS; REPEAL OTHER DOA DUTI ES

9:13:15 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order and announced
the consideration of SB 171. He noted that the conmttee had
previously adopted the commttee substitute (CS) as the working
docunent. He noted that the Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration
(DAA) had four days to a week to look at SB 171 as well as the
University of Alaska and the Al aska Court System He asserted
that the conmttee's intent was to have an open and deliberative
process. He revealed that two possible amendnments were on the
table and people wanted to see them He specified that he did
not want to offer anmendnments until after the conmittee had heard
from the Al aska Court System regarding their exclusion fromthe
bill.

9:14: 15 AM

SHELDON Fl SHER, Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depar t ment of
Admi ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, announced that he would walk
through the bill as currently structured to reflect sone of the

original requests DOA nade as well as sonme of the additions from
the conmittee.

He explained that Section 1 was part of DOA s original request.
He detailed Section 1 as foll ows:

Section 1 is really intended to adopt |anguage which
reflects t he way we currently do busi ness.
Historically or at least at sone point in the past,
these court actions would cone to the Departnent of
Adm ni stration for processing. Today the clerk of the
court sends the judgenent to the attorney of record,
that attorney of record will then work directly with
the departnment that 1is inpacted by it to decide
whether it's appropriate to appeal that or to pay
that, unless this is an issue for the Departnent of
Adm nistration. W are really not in the loop and so
it's really an intent to clean up the |anguage to
reflect how we currently do business.

He specified that Section 2 was added by the commttee to
mandate the University of Alaska use DOA's nmanaged travel
programto nake their travel arrangenents. He stated that rather
than working directly with DOA, the University of Al aska would

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2016



| everage DOA's contract and establish their own arrangenents
with carriers as well as a third party.

CHAIR STOLTZE specified that the conmittee's intent was to
increase the volume and the efficiencies and not to mcro-
manage. He stated that the commttee would be deferential to
DOA' s suggestions to nmake the travel program worKk.

9:16: 26 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked that Conm ssioner Fisher explain
DOA's mnmanaged travel program He inquired how online travel
websites differed from the managed travel program He inquired
i f DOA needed a nanaged travel program

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that the nanaged travel program
was i nportant because DOA negotiates savings with the carriers.
He detailed that DOA reaches out to Alaska Airlines and Delta
Air Lines on travel with any nmaterial anount of volunme and
negoti ate a concessi on.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if a concession was negotiated for the
Anchorage to Juneau route.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that DOA gets a concession on the
Anchorage to Juneau route. He conceded that getting concessions
on nonconpetitive carrier routes was tough. He asserted that the
savings from carrier concessions was nore advantageous than from
online travel websites. He added that one of the chall enges any
| arge organization has in managing travel is how to deal wth
changes, particularly tickets from cancelled trips. He stated
that the centralized nmanaged travel program allows DOA to reduce
costs and capture some opportunities.

9:18:33 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked if DOA's managed travel program has
the ability to take advantage of sales. He noted that Al aska
Airlines has weekly sales as well as their Permanent Fund
Dividend (PFD) sale. He pointed out that conferences negotiate
hotel roomrates, but travel websites have nuch cheaper rates.

COM SSIONER  FI SHER answered yes and detailed that DQOA
negoti ated discounts off of its pronotional rate during sales.
He revealed that DOA was doing an audit to confirm the savings
that the departnent believed it was receiving.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER specified that DOA submitted a request to
make two m nor changes to the definition of the nmanaged travel

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2016



program He detailed that the request asks that "approving and
rei nbursing® be deleted. He specified that DOA s online managed
travel program was a research and purchasing system that does
not i nclude approval or reinbursenent.

9:20:16 AM

He explained that Section 3 was parallel to Section 2, but
rather than applying to the University of Alaska, the section
applied to the Alaska Court System He said to DOA s know edge,
the University of Alaska did not give any comment, but the
Al aska Court System did suggest that the managed travel program
would increase their travel costs. He set forth that DOA
believes that after analysis the savings that DOA negoti ated
were an advantage to the state as conpared to using mles. He
reiterated that the managed travel program also provides the
ability to track cancelled tickets and other travelers'
behavior. He noted that DOA received the Al aska Court Systems
fiscal note the previous day. He stated that DOA did not
conpletely agree with the Alaska Court Systeni s assunptions, but
DOA was not in a position to comment on the purported savings.
He admtted that the Alaska Court System did have a different
travel profile with extensive travel to rural ||ocations and
disclosed that DOA's ability to negotiate savings on rural
routes was nore limted. He said DOA would work with the Al aska
Court System to understand whether or not the nmanaged travel
program has val ue to them

9:21:49 AM

He detailed that Section 4 was DOA's original request. He noted
that there had been questions regarding Section 4 on why the
departnment would elimnate the need to audit. He set forth that
DOA's goal was not to change the notion of having adequate
financial controls over the paynent system

He explained that DOA was attenpting to nodernize the statutory
| anguage to the departnent's financial system and the way it
does business. He revealed that the sections dated back to the
1950s when everything was brought centrally to DOA as part of
the process of processing an invoice for paynent. He detailed
that DOA would look at the approval authority and then the
departnment would audit those as one of the steps to paying a
bill. He revealed that DOA currently wuses the Integrated
Resource Information System (IRIS) to largely decentralize the
previous noted functions into a straight-through processing of
i nvoi ces; for exanple, a vendor goes online and wins a contract,
an admi nistrator goes into the sane system and places an order,
a purchase order is generated, after receiving the order a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2016



receipt is recorded online and the invoice goes into an accounts
payabl e process where the paynent is nade by the same people who
are closest to the transaction.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER summari zed that Section 4 would allow DOA to
noderni ze the departnent's financial controls around processing
paynent s W th t he i mport ant el enent s of appropriate
aut hori zation and segregation of duties so that people are not
bot h.

9:24: 09 AM

DANI EL GEORGE, Staff, Senator Stoltze, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, noted that the question of financial controls
was raised in a previous hearing on SB 171 and Comm ssioner
Fisher addressed the query wth a letter that wll be
distributed to commttee nmenbers and be part of the |egislative
record.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that Section 5 was added by the
commttee and would require the central accounting system to be
placed on the website. He said DOA thinks that placing the
central accounting system on the website was appropriate and the
depart ment had no concerns.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that he would have to excuse hinself to
address a bill in another commttee.

9: 25: 08 AM
VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL announced that he would chair the commttee.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER di scl osed that DOA submtted a fiscal note
associated with Section 6. He stated that as a nmatter of
principal, DOA would enbrace and agree with the requirenents
established in Section 6. He detailed that Section 6 would
enhance disclosure and financial information for Alaskans to
have easi er access.

He explained that there are two requirenents in order for DOA to
nmeet the | anguage in Section 6:

1. Purchase a software system
2. Personal services are required to neet the schedul e.

He specified that DOA started disclosing financial information
in 2008 in a fairly rudinmentary way where PDF or Excel docunents
were posted on a website. He noted that the state received a "C
grade" for transparency at the tine, but the state currently

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2016



receives an "F grade." He explained that the current
transparency grade was due to increased expectations and
standards, not for a change in disclosures. He detailed that the
software |icensing program would cost $81,000 a year. He said
DOA thinks the software would provide the search ability,
graphing capabilities and information that has becone expected
by the public. He noted that the fiscal note includes the cost
of the software.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER said the second requirenent was personal
services to neet the schedule. He explained that the D vision of
Finance was in the mdst of inplementing IRIS and DOA was
wor ki ng on a human resources (HR) system nodule. He stated that
DOA cannot neet the schedule in Section 6 wthout additiona
resources. He revealed that the combined cost for FY1l7 and FY18
woul d be approxi mately $460, 000 and $463,000. He said after FY17
and FY18, the cost trails off to a couple of hundred thousand
dollars on a |l onger term basis.

9:28: 26 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI noted that the governor said he was going
to be working on updating the system after the state received
the "F rating." He asked if the updating would use current
resources or has the governor put in a request for increased
resour ces.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that when DOA first |aunched IR'S,
the financial information that the department historically
di scl osed was renoved in order to facilitate getting the system
up. He added that DOA has returned to posting the financial
information. He detailed that the software DOA was tal ki ng about
has three nodul es and each nodule is roughly $28,000: one is for
expenses, on is for human resources, and one is for revenue. He
reported that DOA believes that nmoving from an "F rating” to a
"C rating" would be achieved by nerely inplenenting the expense
nodule that would result in better interface that is nore
searchable and graphical. He said DOA believes that the
departnment can absorb the $28,000 cost for one nbdule within its
budget, but to go beyond with the required appropriation and
personnel information in addition to the added work would
require the additional [resources.]

9: 30: 56 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that exactly the same provision went
through the Senate and House in 2008. He detailed that the
provision was highly vetted by both finance committees, but the
provision literally died on the last day of the session. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2016



pointed out that the exact sane provision in 2008 had a zero
fiscal note, but DOA's current fiscal note was $400, 000.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER specul ated that the 2008 inplenentation was
done by nerely posting PDF or Excel files on a website. He
expl ained that the search ability and graphical interphases are
what is expected. He added that if DOA could take on the
additional work, then the bill would not be burdened with a
fiscal note; however, due to a conbination of departnental cuts
and the IR'S launch, DOA cannot neet the schedule wth its
current resources. He stated that he was wlling to have a
conversation on what DOA could do with its resources with a
pushed out schedule; but, DOA was not in a position to schedule
the work wthout inpacting the IRS and human resources
proj ects.

9:33: 37 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that Comm ssioner Fisher was
obviously aware of the state's fiscal situation. He surm sed
that the commttee would try and lower the fiscal note as |ow as
possi bl e. He asked that Conm ssioner Fisher neet with commttee
menbers afterwards to address how to dramatically |ower the
fiscal note.

COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he would be happy to oblige
Senat or W el echowski's request.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked when the IRIS project started, what was
the cost, and did DOA contenpl ate addi ng nodul es at that tine.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that DOA did not contenpl ate adding
the nodules as part of the IRIS project. He revealed that the
RIS project was on tinme and on budget. He added that DOA shoul d
start seeing increased benefits fromthe value of IR S

CO-CHAIR COGHI LL asked that Comm ssioner Fisher address the
fiscal note.

9:35:37 AM

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER admitted that he did not think DOA could get
away from the software. He detailed that the fiscal note that
DOA proposes would inplement the nodules in three successive
years as foll ows:

1. July 1, 2017: expenditure nodule's transactions would be up

and functioning, FY17: $27, 000.
2. January, 2019: enpl oyee-payroll nodule, FY18: $54, 000.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2016



3. 2020: revenue-transacti ons nodul e, FY19: $81, 000.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER pointed out that the $81,000 starting in
FY19 would continue to be ongoing. He said DOA would work hard
to strive and beat the projected dates, but the departnment was
confident with its current resources that the changes could be
i npl enented. He believed that getting the expenditures up wth
the new software nodule would nove the state from an "F rating"
to a "Crating." He added that he was not proud of a "C rating,"
but a "C rating”" was better than kind of being the worst in the
country. He added that the changes would nove the state on a
pat h of inproving going forward.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL pointed out that the State Affairs Conmttee
was not the Senate Finance Conmittee, but the commttee would
still have to deal with the fiscal note.

9:37:40 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER reported that Section 7 and Section 8 were
originally submtted by DOA. He added that there was no |onger a
"tourist class" designation and the | anguage would be revised to
"l owest fare available.”

He detailed that DOA was repealing sone sections in Section 9.
He explained that DOA used to facilitate the purchase of U S
Savi ngs Bonds by enpl oyees, but the federal government had noved
to an electronic system and the state no longer facilitates the
purchase of U.S. Savi ngs Bonds.

He noted that a pending amendnment would address sections that
mnimze the fiscal note by pushing dates out. He added that
pushing the dates out could help DOA reduce the need for
personnel in the near term He infornmed that DOA proposed sone
amendnents consistent with the fiscal note that the departnent
previously presented, but a broader conversation ought to occur
regarding the dates for a revised fiscal note.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL asked M. GCeorge to address anendnents that
Chair Stoltze proposed.

9:39: 34 AM

MR. CGEORGE expl ai ned that one of the amendnents woul d extend the
i npl enentation of the online checkbook by three nonths. He
detailed the date changes in sections 10 and 11 as foll ows:

1. Section 10: changes from Cctober 1, 2016 to January 1,
2017.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2016



2. Section 11: changes from Cctober 1, 2017 to January 1,
2018.

MR. GEORCE stated that he believed Comm ssioner Fisher said the
date changes from the anendnent nore aligns wth the
Conpr ehensi ve Annual Financial Report (CAFR). He noted that
commttee nenbers expressed a desire to know the statutes'
origin that were being repealed and their hi st ori cal
significance when they were enacted. He explained that a
docunent was prepared by the commttee that details the statute
i nformation.

He said another docunent specifically addressed the repeal in
Section 9 of AS 37.10.088. He revealed that the bill that
enacted AS 37.10.088 dealt with putting the university system
under the Executive Budget Act and the Fiscal Procedures Act.
The bill was signhed by Steve Cooper, House Finance chair at the
time about the inportance of putting the university under the
state's fiscal managenent systens. He opined that the docunent
was tinely given the other provisions that were added to the
bill in the CS regarding the university and the travel system

He sunmmarized that the committee has fiscal notes from DOA and
the Alaska Court System but the wuniversity system did not
submt a fiscal note. He noted that the president of the
university systemhad submtted a letter to the commttee.

9:41: 37 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS remarked that he saw SB 171 as a bill from the
governor. He noted that had heard that the [online checkbook]
was down. He asked Comm ssioner Fisher to confirm that the
"checkbook” was consciously taken down and not due to a
mal function to the system

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that the "checkbook” was taken down
during the IRIS inplementation and the deci sion was consci ous.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the "checkbook” was down for a period
of time for a mal function.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that the only tinme DOA was aware
that the "checkbook™ was down was the period after the IRS
i npl enentation due to the financial system having to be noved.
COW SSI ONER  FI SHER specified that DOA was nmaking sure that
confidential informati on was not exposed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2016



SENATOR HUGE NS reiterated that the SB 171 was a governor's
bill. He pointed out that the state's enterprising agencies have
separated thenselves over tinme further and further. He asked if
he was being unreasonable in requesting that in the spirit of
cooperation that sonething substantive be done while the
commttee had the governor's bill.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER answered no. He said there was nothing in
the bill that, as a matter of principal, DOA was opposed to. He
added that DOA even supported the issues around Section 6. He
asserted that DOA thinks that the issues around Section 6 was
exactly where the state should go and DOA would work wth
Senator Huggins to find a way to get there.

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL opened public testinony.

9:44: 40 AM

MYRON DOSCH, Controller, University of Al aska, Fai r banks

Al aska, stated that his comments pertained to the |anguage in SB
171 where the university would be required to use DOA's managed
travel program He said in principal, the university does not
di sagree wth using State of Al aska contracts to garner savings
and efficiency. He pointed out that the bill's intent was to
save noney and noted that the president for the University of
Al aska sent committee nenbers a letter that detailed the
university's efforts over the |ast several years to decrease
travel. He detailed that the university has reduced travel by
$3.6 million or 20 percent since FY12.

He said the university respectfully requests for the opportunity
to evaluate and decide on the best options for its travel
program He stated that the university believes that using the
State of Al aska contracts, specifically the negotiated
contracts, would be better for the university.

He opined that there were three pieces to the managed travel
program negotiated contracts with the airlines; contact with a
travel agency, U S. Travel, wth the use of a booking-tool
interface; and travel expense managenent. He noted that the
university agreed wth Comm ssioner Fisher regarding the
anmendnent to renove the words "approving” and "reinbursing” from
the travel expense managenent side.

MR. DOSCH di sclosed that the university started a working group
in January 2016 to evaluate booking-tool options between the
state's booking-tool systenms and sone other third party. He
detailed that the evaluation would be based on the university's

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 31, 2016



needs. He revealed that a report was forthcom ng within the next
nmonth. He added that a legislative audit was going on for both
the state and the university as well.

He remarked that his <concern pertained to the unintended
consequences that could occur if the |anguage within the bill
stayed the sanme. He pointed out that one issue may occur if the
university was required to use the same corporate card system as
the State of Alaska. He noted that the university has existing
contracts for its corporate card. He added that connectivity may
be an issue if the university was required to use the state's IT
system

He summarized that the university was on the sane page wth
regard to saving noney. He declared that the university would
| ook at using the State of Al aska contracts. He reiterated that
the wuniversity would want the opportunity to evaluate the
booki ng-tool aspect, needs assessnment, procurenent process, and
the travel and expense reporting. He added that the university
woul d ook at the state's systemas well.

9:50: 51 AM

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL conmented that one of the questions would be
how to dovetail the nmanaged travel programwi th the university.
He asked Comm ssioner Fisher if he had any comments.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered no. He stated that DOA agreed with
M. Dosch's assessnent on different financial systens regarding
different corporate cards. He said having the university manage
its own travel made sense by |leveraging DOA's contracts. He set
forth that DOA would be pleased to work with the university to
explain how the program works and what they need to do to take
advant age of it.

SENATOR HUGGA NS reiterated that SB 171 was a governor's bill. He
asked Conmi ssioner Fisher to confirm his perception that there
was not a |lot of connectivity between what he was reading in the
bill and the parties involved. He remarked that the naturation
was occurring at a slow rate.

9:52: 35 AM

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER confirnmed that SB 171 was a governor's bill,
but pointed out that the sections on travel were added by the
conmttee. He asserted that DOA did not have an objection to the
sections that the commttee had added. He stated that DOA woul d
be happy to take the sections and work with the university to
ensure that the pieces fit together. He pointed out that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 31, 2016



sections that the nost time was spent on were added by the
committee. He said DOA was trying to be responsive to the
commttee's desire and the departnent supported the direction.

SENATOR HUGGE NS responded that Comm ssioner Fisher's statenent
made his point perfectly where the conmttee asking for
sonmething has lots of ramfications. He asserted that his
preference 100 percent of the tinme was the wuniversity knows
what's best for them and DOA knows what best for the state from
the adm nistration standpoint. He said integration should not be
left up to the people sitting in the conmttee to say, "W have
a good idea too," so that the committee was not spending an
i nordinate amount of tinme to just integrate a system a little
bit. He set forth that processing tickets, but not proving them
was pretty sinple and not rocket science. He requested that
travel managenent not be bel abored for a long tine if the nunber
of inplications were not thought through.

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL commented that part of the commttee's
process was trying to get the integration information in front
of everyone and testinony was inportant. He asked that the
Al aska Court Systemtestify before the conmittee. He thanked the
university and noted their wllingness to work, but admtted
that there were sone "gears" that need to work together for the
integration to get done.

9:55: 04 AM

NANCY MEADE, GCeneral Counsel, Al aska Court System Anchorage,
Al aska, stated that her intent was to explain their fiscal note.
She said the Alaska Court System did a cost-conparison analysis
of using the state travel office versus the current system and
they found that using the state travel office would cost the
Al aska Court System over $43, 000 nore.

She explained that the Alaska Court System travels differently
from what the executive branch does. She set forth that the
Al aska Court System has controls in place that provide better
travel -dollar value than using the state travel office. She
stated that the financial staff tries to ensure that the court
system was doing is nost cost effective. She added that nuch of
the court systenis travel was juror travel to renote |ocations
that are not covered by the state office. She infornmed that DOA
does have a contract with Raven Air where sone juror travel
woul d be covered, but about two thirds would not be covered.

M5. MEADE detailed that the Alaska Court System was small wth
only 750 enployees and only 200 that travel w th approximtely

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2016



50 that travel nore than once a year. She noted that a clerk nay
travel once a year to a conference and judges nay travel nore
often to cover hearings in renote places.

She explained that the Al aska Court System does use the DQOA's
prograns for other things to be cost effective like supply
i ssues, leasing copiers and other things |ike that when using
IRI'S; however, she reiterated that the court system confirnmed
that their best travel value was attained wthout using the
state's travel office.

She disclosed that |ower travel costs were attributed to the use
of PFD fares that were not covered by the state travel office,
charging all tickets through EasyBiz, and using the court's
Alaska Airlines Visa card. She detailed that the court system
was earning three air-mles for every dollar spent on Al aska
Airlines. She specified that tickets over $800 use the mleage
account to cover the difference above $800. She added that
people are required to go through the court systemls sole travel
per son.

She summarized that the fiscal noted detailed that the fees the
court system would pay the state travel office offsets al nost
conpletely and al nbst an exact wash with what mght be saved by
getting the negotiated Alaska Airlines fares. She remarked that
Al aska Court Systemls nmmin inpact was the $40,000 savings
realized fromthe m | eage program

10: 00: 04 AM
VI CE- CHAIR COGHI LL comrented that the Court System has been very
frugal .

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI poi nted out to Commi ssioner Fisher that the
Al aska Court System nmay have a better plan than DOA

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER reiterated that he was not prepared to talk
about the nuances of what the Al aska Court System does and how
it related to DOA. He said DOA believes that sone of the court
systems assunptions were different than DOA's practice
experience. He pointed out that a change occurred during the
current year where PFD fares were included by the travel
managenent program He remarked that he does not necessarily
di sagree with anything that the Al aska Court System said. He
concurred that the court system had a different travel profile
with nore trips to rural markets. He pointed out that rural
destinations were places that DOA did not have a |lot of value to
add. He disclosed that DOA had found in its analysis that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2016



managed travel program does better wth negotiated discounts
than mles. He said he would be pleased to review his remarks
and provi de exanpl es.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL pointed out that the State of Alaska travel
budget was about $19 nillion with the court system at $1.7
mllion. He stated that he was surprised that the court system
could run the $1.7 million through a singular credit card.

M5. MEADE explained that the court systemis credit card limt
was $50,000 and paynents were nmade weekly. She admitted that
maki ng weekly credit card statements may not be a realistic
option for the executive branch.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL remarked that Ms. Meade's renmarks provided a
good expl anation. He said an anendnent was on the table that may
include the university, but not the court system for the reasons
that Ms. Meade expl ai ned.

10: 02: 42 AM

M5. MEADE reiterated that the court system was able to confirm
that through conparison analysis that their own travel program
was nore cost effective than DOA' s managed travel program

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if DOA' s managed travel program tracked
individual travel that provided an alert if someone was
traveling too much.

COM SSI ONER  FI SHER explained that DOA did not necessarily
nmoni tor whether a person was traveling too nuch. He specified
that DOA has a set of rules around fares; for exanple, booking
fares that were not the lowest-class fare would result in a
notice. He remarked that DOA does publically report travel by
the conm ssioners and the governor's office. He added that DOA
al so provides departnental reports. He noted that unused ticket
notices were sent out on a regular basis as well.

10: 04: 44 AM

VICE-CHAIR COGH LL announced that SB 171 wuld be held in
committee. He added that two anendnents to the bill would be
addressed the next tine the bill was heard.

SB 194- LAQ HMONG VETERAN DRI VER S LI CENSE & | D CARD

10: 05: 16 AM
VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL announced the considerati on of SB 194.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2016



SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 194, explained that the
bill would expand the eligibility for a veterans' designation on
state-issued ID cards and driver's licenses to include Hmng and
Lao veterans who served in support of American's interest during
the Vietnam era in what is known as the "secret war." He
continued as foll ows:

Wen it was discovered during the Vietnam war that
communi st forces had entered Laos, the CIA covertly
recruited and trained over 35,000 Hhnong soldiers to
defend U.S. nilitary operations; these soldiers fought
to block the primary supply route of +the North
Vi et nanese arny, gathered intelligence, supported
American mlitary personnel, and rescued downed
pilots. During that <conflict, the Hmwng suffered
tremendous | osses. The Hnmong soldiers it is estinmated
died at ten tines the rate of Anerican soldiers in the
Vietnam conflict. It is estimted that nearly 100,000

Hrong, including civilians, died during the "secret
war." After the war, the Lao governnent organized
against the Hmong for having assisted the United
States, interring tens of thousands and killing an

estimated 50,000 Hrong as retribution. Despite serving
honor ably, Hnong veterans have waited many years to be
fully recognized and we have a veteran's designation
on our drivers' license. The plan is to work with the
Department of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs and DW to
establish some sort of procedure that they can prove
that they served during the Vietnam War.

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL opened public testinony.

10: 08: 11 AM

PASERT LEE, representing hinself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 194. He explained that he was representing the
Hmong Al aska Conmunity, Inc. and the Hrong American Veterans of
Anchorage, Al aska. He disclosed that the Hnong and Lao people
hel ped thousands of Anericans throughout the Vietnam War on the
Ho Chi Mnh Trail, Laos, and Vietnam He stated that the Hmong-
Lao have been patiently waiting for 41 years to be acknow edged
for their sacrifice. He remarked that nany Hnrong-Lao veterans
have passed away and nore will be gone if the waiting continued.

10: 09: 52 AM
ARTHUR YANG representative, Hmong-Al aska U. S. Special Guerrilla
Unit Corporation, Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2016



194. He detailed that the Hnmong were a special guerrilla unit
that served the United States during the Vietnam War. He set
forth that the Hrong deserved recognition for the great job they
did during the Vietnam War.

10: 12: 24 AM

PAMELA BEALE, Chair, Alaska Veterans Advisory Council, Al aska
Department of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 194. She revealed that after polling
the nenbers of the Al aska Veterans Advisory Council on SB 194,
the mjority supported an act relating to the veterans
designation on the identification card or driver's license for
t he Hrong and Lao veterans.

10: 13: 16 AM

BOB DCEHL, Deputy Conm ssioner, Al aska Departnment of Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs (DWA), Anchorage, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 194. He stated that following the three previous
speakers was hunbling. He revealed that 35,000 Hmong directly
supported U S. forces and 20,000 were estimated to have
peri shed, a casualty rate not seen since the Cvil War. He said
when the communists took over Laos after the war, all of the
Hmong were targeted for elimnation by mass genocide or forced
exodus. He noted that some of the Hhong that testified earlier
were still black-1isted and cannot return to their hone country.
He set forth that the U S. was their country now.

He detailed that the Hmong were the primary force that
interjected North Vietnamese supplies on the Ho Chi Mnh Trail
and resupply routes through the jungle so heavy that air attacks
could not stop it. He remarked that the guns and ammunition the
Hmong destroyed were the ones that could not be used against
US. forces. He added that the Hrong were also the ones that
protected radio aid stations that were vital to U S. bonbing
i nside North Vietnam

He revealed that in comng from a rescue community, a personal
note, the Hrong would go and rescue downed U.S. airnmen in places
deened too dangerous to send U S forces in what was terned a
good mi ssion, the Hmng would only lose 10 to rescue 1-Anerican
ai rman.

MR. DCEHL disclosed that Brigadier General Hammond's father did
three tours in Vietnam and was stationed with units that were
known to have been supported by the Hnong; she has no doubt that
the Hnong efforts hel ped enable her father to return home and
that debt of gratitude is owed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- March 31, 2016



He set forth that on behalf of DWA, General Humrel, and
himsel f, the conmmttee's efforts were wel coned for recognizing a
group that suffered huge conmbat |osses in Vietnam so that fewer
American veterans were killed in action (KIA) and mssing in
action (MA).

10: 15: 22 AM

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the bill wuld entitle Hnong
veterans to any other benefits that they were currently unable
to get.

MR. DOEHL answered no. He specified that the bill only allows
license plate and driver's |icense recognition. He noted that
Verdi e Bowen woul d be able to detail Hrong veteran verification.

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL asked how verificati on woul d work.

10: 16: 22 AM

VERDIE BOWEN, Director, Ofice of Veterans Affairs, Al aska
Departnment of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs, Anchorage, Al aska,
expl ained that verification would be set up virtually the sane
way as with the Alaska Territorial Guard nenbers. He detailed
that individuals within the Hhong comunity would be designated
to verify an individual's service. The adjutant general for the
State of Alaska wuld sign the honorable service after
verification and a state equivalent to a "DD Form 214" would be
issued that could be used at DW for a driver's |icense
desi gnat i on.

VICE-CHAIR COGH LL comented that verification should be
credi bl e and honor abl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI announced that he had a CS to bring before
the commttee. He explained that the CS nade snall technical
changes.

VI CE-CHAI R COGHI LL asked Senator Wel echowski if he worked with
Chair Stoltze on the CS.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI answer ed yes.

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL asked that Senator Huggins nove to adopt the
Cs.

10:17:55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- March 31, 2016



SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt the CS for SB 194 as the working
docunent .

VI CE- CHAI R COGHI LL obj ected for discussion purposes.

MR. GEORGE announced that the CS was a State Affairs CS that did
go through the chair's office. He explained that the chair is
the only office authorized to order a State Affairs CS. He said
the CS was ordered and included changes which were brought
forward to the chair's office from the sponsor. He explained

that there was sone needed cleanup to be done from the bill's
drafting.

He detailed that the CS makes two changes to the bill. He
pointed out that the bill's original version was a bit

duplicative in how veterans were described and two different
service dates were given. He stated that the significance of the
service dates was laid out with backup docunents and
consolidated to read as foll ows:

O a Hmwong veteran or Lao veteran who served in
mlitary operations in support of the United States in
t he Kingdom of Laos between February 20, 1961 and My
15, 1975.

He specified that the broader service date definition goes back
to 1961 rather than the two dates which had a 1964 date that was
tied to the @lf of Tonkin incident that led to the actual
declaration in the Vietnam War. He pointed out that the 1961
date was used by President Ford to define veteran's benefits for
the conflict and the CS would conform to federal U.S. code. He
added that the May 15, 1975 date was the fall of the secret
ai rbase that the CIA set up along with Hmong veterans. He noted
that the changes were repeated in Section 2 as well.

10: 20: 07 AM

He pointed out that the title which Section 1 anends was in
Title 18, Public Safety statutes. He disclosed that Title 18 was
a vestige when the Division of Mdtor Vehicles (DW) was in the
Department of Public Safety. He noted that the section reads on
page 2 as foll ows:

The departnent shall consult wth Departnent of
Mlitary & Veterans Affairs to determne the proof
necessary to show that a person is a Hrong veteran.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 31, 2016



MR. CGEORGE detailed that "departnent"” was actually referring to
the Al aska Departnent of Admnistration (DOA) even though the
statute was in the Public Safety statutes. He revealed that the
governor's executive order in 1997 noved DW to DOA and that was
the reason two different titles were effected. He expl ained that
the bill was specific to ID cards and driver's |icenses.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL renpoved his objection to adopting the CS. He
noted that Chair Stoltze asked that the bill be held in
committee.

10: 21: 32 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that he encouraged Senator W el echowsk

to neet with him regarding the veteran's caucus that recently
nmet on coordinating activities. He asserted that he did not know
of anybody that objected to the bill, but noted that there may
be sone reasons. He disclosed that he worked with the Hnong and
remarked that the Hmong were wonder people that did wonderful
things, but there were other people that were involved,
including the indigenous people of Vietnam that did the sane
thing. He revealed that he served in the Vietnam War and had
scars fromit. He said he was angry about sone of the things
that he saw and referenced John Kerry and Jane Fonda as traders.
He asserted that his coments were not about hinself and his
intent was to nake sure what the conmttee was trying to do was
done correctly, accurately, and with dignity. He expressed that
the legislation should not be done because sonebody was "our
nei ghbor." He said there was a lot of history and the whole
South Vietnanese arny nmight be forgotten. He pointed out that a
whol e bunch of Vietnanese people live in Al aska because of what
t hey did.

10: 23: 36 AM

BROCKE VY, Staff, Senat or W el echowski , Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, divulged that the DWA was open to
broadening the |anguage to include other foreign nationals that
may have fought on behalf of the United States overseas. She
stated that a further discussion could occur to address the
| anguage to broaden the definitions within the bill.

SENATOR HUGA NS replied that he had spoken to Verdie Bowen with
DWA. He noted that he held the sane position as Verdi e Bowen at
one time. He asserted that the intended recognition was a
process that could not be done on a Monday norning because
hi story was invol ved.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 31, 2016



VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL noted that he served in Europe rather than
Vi et nam

10: 24: 45 AM
VICE-CHAIR COGH LL announced that SB 194 would be held in
commttee for further discussion.

10: 25: 00 AM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Vi ce-Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate State Affairs Committee
at 10:25 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- March 31, 2016



